MR. CHAIRMAN:
1 -- coday is the yirginia

pack to Item g
tion ©

poard on it's own motion will consider the adopP ;

r the peatrice mine gealed gob ared basgd

re grid. This is docket number

Exeld rules fo

upon the existing 80 ac

VGOB-96/06/18-0545 which was continued from ‘June. #

we'd ask the parties that wish to address this matter

to come forward at this tlme Mr. Eulmer, 1 believe

you have some,information to provide to the Board. | M5 .

Riggs will discuss it. I will ask again, are there
any partiesghere wishing to address the poard in this
matter today?  If you do you may want to come forward

_at the table and we'll provide you with this informs

ation-we are looking at. (pause.’) 1'11 ask Ms. Rigqs

“to give us a prief to take us pback into May, I believe,

when we had our hearing. We asked 'that the order be
drafted, that the Board would review-and Ms. ﬁiggé;will
bring us up to date from there.
RIGGS: I have the transcript from the 1asﬁ hearing-and

the Board did take testimony at that time with regard

to the establishment of the Beatrice sealed gob unit,

the establishment of field rules under 45.,1-361. 20 to

accommodate the mined out area of the: Beatrice Hine




which is shown on your plat that's attached po the back
of these proposed rules. I think the concerns at the
time were that this is such a large unit and it
involved such massive title search that it didn't lend
itself to the ability of ‘one operator to come in aﬁd
create a single sealed gob unit for purposes of
producing this mined out sealed area of the Beatrice
Mine. The Board was entertaining the idea of creating
allowable productions within the existing 80 acre
Oakwood grid that overlaps this unit in order to allow
preduction to proceed on a unit by unit basis rather
than having a single sealed gob unit that encompassed
the entire sealed mine. After taking testimony the
Board asked that I take that transcript and come:up
with a draft of a set of field rules for the Board's

consideration so that the testimony was sort of

consolidated into a document  that you could look at and

review and consider. The draft that you have before
you is the result of my effort tortake that testimony
and put it into some form of a field rule. There were
a couple of issues that were addressed in the tréns—

cript that have not been addressed in the proposed

field rules. And.one of those has to do with the
request that operators be allowed to us allowable from

either contiguous or noncontiguous units and allocate




. b

them to a particular drilling unit. In other words,
unitize drilling units within the sealed gob area.

That has not been addressed in here Dbecause I don't --
I didn't know what direction to go with that really. T
guess that raises the other issue-of whether or not if
you allow that -- the units that are consolidated

whether they have to be contiguous or whether allow-

ables can be take from noncontiguous units. Mark askgd

that T forward to him a copy of the draft of the
proposed field rules since he and his clients were the
ones that put on the testimony to the Board and I am
sure that he's had an opportunity to review it and
would have comments with respect to what the field
rules doesn't contain as opposed to what it does.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Swartz.

MR. SWARTZ: Actually, Sandy, I've looked at the order. I
think it's pretty straight forward. I really have very
limited comments and they, I think, pertain to some
discretion in sowme choices thatzyou all have as a 3care
and a couple of observations. . Basically I think the
problem that Sandy identified which was a réason why we

came forward and tried to present evidence in support

of the field rules here. The basic reason is that
title can be incredibly expensive. This is . a hugh

mine. As you heard earlier from either one of the




¢ -~+ or EREC witnesses that just tracing one set of
families -- you know, if they happen to have ten
children one of those firms spent 500 hours on three
percent of an 80 acre or 112 acre unit, I guess. So
title here is a hugh problem. It's a problem for largé
companies. It's a problem for individuals, that are |
trying to develop the acreage. So the theory here was
lets, if we can, devigse a plan that allows 80 acre more
manageable units to be developed and I think that this
addresses that. The question then came because this is

a sealed unit. The mine shaft -- we've just some 447
" 18

people here. But this is a shaft mine. The shafts to
$+'t

the mine have been sealed. SO essentially thisrisg';;
container. In theory one hole could drain this :
container if you pulled on that hole hard enough and|
long encugh. And to prevent unfair drainage, meaning a
unit or a well in one corner essentially draining .
everybody's gas, the solution was to go with éilow—
ables. I think this ‘is the £irst time this Boérd ha?
ever used allowable. I think in the past perhépé some
of the problems we've addressed might have been handied
with allowables but this is the first time you've :
chosen to do that. And what that means is that for any

given unit that is either voluntarily pooled or forcéd

pocled by Board order the most you can produce out of




that unit is 350 million cubic feet. 1It's at paragraph
at the bottom of page 2. I think that's congistent
with the testimony that you heard last time. The
question, moving from pfotecting correlative rights 8O
+hat no one unit can take more than 350 million cubic
feet, we further got to what I woluld describe as an
economic issue and you may or may not know. pennis was
here then. When we have pooled sealed gob units in the
past there have been 1imitations that the Board has
placed on my client in' terms of the number of wells
that they can utilize to draio that unit.  The idea
peing, again, it's a gealed a container. What‘é a
reasonable number of wells to produce & sufficient
amount of gas over some reasonable‘period of time. 50 S
that you're not 1oading costs into the unit and passing | :
those potentially to people unfair: so that the unit :
would make economic sense. “We've kind of got the
reverse situation here and what we suggested. to you all

that you needed to consider was that it would ke

unreasonable from an econonmic standpoint if there had

to be a well in every one of these 80 acre units
bacause from a physics standpoint or a geology stand- i
point wells have a capability of draining a much 1arger
area than an 80 acre unit. So our proposal aer 7

recall it, was if you have allowables you shouid




develop some means of permitting an operator with a
well in one unit to take the 350 million allowable
assigned to that unit, to voluntarily pool another unit
in the mine or in this area. It doesn't have to be
contiguous. It could be anywhere. And provide notice
to some one, whether it's Mr. Fulmer's office or you
office, here's a voluntary unit and I'm claiming the
150 million assigned to that and to do that so that you
could have eight or ten units or perhaps even more
drained by a well bore -- one well bore and the
allowables. And that's our proposal. I think =-- you
may not agree with me but I think that the allowables
-- the imposition of an allowable per unit and the fact
that that would be a condition here solves the problem
of how many units could an operator assign to a given
well bore. Because until all -- the physics again.
Until all of the units allowables have been claimed
there is in theory the gas is still in place. You're
not taking more than any given unit's share. So T
think what the order does not do -- what you need to"
address is how does an operator with a well bore in one
unit notify the Board or the Inspector and say, "T have
another unit that I have voluntarily pooled and I Qould

like to claim the 350 =-- start producing the 350

million allocated to that unit through this well bore."




Ts it scmething that people need to come back to the
Board for? IS it something you would feel comfortable
simply on the notice basis? And then the next issue is
there will be situations where it won't be a voluntary
unit. You may have 50 percent of the unit leased and
you need to pool the other 50 percent. In situations
1ike that people are going to have to come back to the
Board in a forced pooling situation. so I'm not sure
you need to address that. You can address -= those

will be here. There's no way around it. But certainly‘
in terms of a voluntary unit what do you feel ccmfort- &
able with as a mechanism for people to go on record "we
are producing or we want to produce the allowable ;.
assigned to this given unit and we have pooled it on a

voluntary basis." The last thing that addresses in

the draft order that sandy has prepared -- that reallyjé

addresses Paragraphs -- some revisions of Paragraphs F:é
and H on the last page. I would also comment that
sandy's order of paragraph H at Lines 4 and 5. -— Seen i
to me and I'm not sure che intended this == looks like
it would expect the pooling of multiple units at the 7
same time. I don't really see why we would havé to do-k
Aitdsaysi " That where however such. owners have not g
agreed to soO pool their interests and to develop

either single or multiple drilling units" I don't




MR.

MR.

think it's relevant that an owner in a drilling unit
that needs to be force pooled doesn't want you to pool
some other unit.

RIGGS: Uh-huh.

SWARTZ: I'm not sure that's what you intended, but it's
capable of being read that way and you need to --

CHAIRMAN: Clarify that.

RIGGS: Okay.

SWARTZ: I have Claude Morgan here today and Les
Arrington who would be available to answer questions
with regard to basically the two issues I've raised.
I'm here, too, I suppose, but those are the two
concerns I have.

CHATRMAN: Mr. Ratliff, do you have ahything that you
want to address the Board? Let me first just get you
to state your full name for the record.

RATLIFF: I'm Wyatt Ratliff, president of Ratliff Gas
Company. I have the only permitted well'within this
Beatrice Mine area. I want to object to placing a
1imit on the amount of production and I have a state-
ment here. TI'd just like to read it to the Board.
"please be advised that it is our position-at Ratliff-
Gas Company, Incorporated that any such cap or limit-

ation upon the production of Ratliff #1 well would

violate the vested rights both of Ratliff Gas company, |




Incorporated as in the well and in the production
therefrom along with a violation of the vested rights
of the royalty owners. Ag the Board is well aware, ne
1aw or regulation can be enacted to adversely affect
vested rights. Both Ratliff Gas Company, Incorporated
and its royalty owners have a vested right in the full
production at whatever the maximum allowable rate could
be in Ratliff Gas Company's #l well.. Any regulation by
the establishment of uniform field rules or otherwisel
which interfere with this vested right held by Ratliff
Gas Company and its royalty owners violates both
statutory protections and constitutional protection
both United states and Vvirginia Constitution by
operating to take away the right to produce as much
gas as that well is capable of producing.” That's my
only statement. That's what I have. :

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Ratliff.  If the Board has
questions are Yyou willing to answer any questions?

RATLIFF: Yes, I will.

CHAIRMAN: Does the Board have any questions for Mr.
Ratliff at this time?

KING: I have a question. Mr. Ratliff, I've not-beén a
member too long but you have appeared. You are the

only producing well in this Beatrice Miné?

RATLIFF: As far as I know T am the only permitted well




that is producing in this Beatrice Mine.

KING: Are you maybe saying that there ig being produced
other than permitted?

RATLIFF: Yes.

KING: I wanted that to be in the record. ‘Am I not
correct, Mr. Chairman, that this is the old Island
creek mine that now belongs to consol? Is that
correct?

CHAIRMAN: Do you --

FULMER: on the Beatrice Mine I've got the:maps and
records here, if that would help you.

CHAIRMAN: You might want to do that. This is the old
Beatrice Mine. Consol will have to speak to ownership
efsit: ?

SWARTZ: I'm net sure it's that simple. But Island
creek has purchased it by ‘a entity that 16 in the
consol family.

KING: So actually the coal rights belong to Consol?

SWARTZ: I doubt that. I'm sure that the leases are in
an Island Creek entity to.the extent that they're still
in effect and I assume they are. The problem you have

when vou buy -- when you acquire mineral companies .
there are typically restrictions in the ‘leases on

transfer. So you normally are pretty much in a

position where you have to keep corporate form and wind




up buying stock. So it is unlikely that these property
assets found their way into a -- directly into a Consol
company. They're probably gtill help -- it's been a
while since this transaction, but they're probably
still held by Island Creek or subsdidiary EDmpanies of
the Island Creek family.
KING: Ccould I follow that a little further to ask then
-- we're addressing now methane gas production?

SWARTZ: Right.

KING: And that could belong to a whole bunch of people

thatiwe, -

CHAIRMAN: We don't know who owns it. We haven't made

f
Fa
ek

any determinations as far as the Board as to Qho_mig@};
own the gas. . d

KING: ~But I think what -- if I'm correct, sandy's
trying to address that here with this maybe.

CHAIRMAN: Not as to ownership. This is trying to
address the unit so that it might enable that entire
unit to be -- that entire pool of gas to be devﬁlopﬂﬂ.*

KING: To be pooled?

CHAIRMAN: To be developed.

RIGGS: If there were conflicting claims within any ‘}

particular unit they ‘would still have to come back to

the Board for 'a poeoling application similar to what yoﬁ

heard earlier today where they identify all the owners;,

»




and either get yvoluntary leases which would be 2a
voluntary unit or come before the poard and pool the

interests within that unit to force pool and give the

notice and all the due diligence that we heard about
today. So the parties receive the notice at the time

of the pooling ofsathe individual squares -—- the

individual units.
MR. SWARTZ: See, basically to have a voluntary unit you

have to lease the acreage twice. you've got to lease

the coal side of it and you've got to_lease the oil and
gas side of it. ' So, I mean, for 100,000 acres of real
land you're going to wind up with well over 100,000
acres of leases. and the situation here is when

consol purchased the stock of an entity that owned

Island Creek' they also purcbased the stock of entities

that were the corporate partners‘indirectly in Buchanan

production Company which is the oil and gas lessee. SO

to some extent they were acquiripg both sides of that
transaction. But there are many, many units where a
plece of the oil and gas ig not leased or & piece of
the coal is not 1eased. ' So really for every 80 acre

unit potentially you have to lease 160 acres to have a

voluntary unit.

MR. GARBIS: Did you say this was approximaﬁely 100,000

acres?




SWARTZ: No. This mine is 6,100 roughly. It's in the

order. The pakwood Field is a little over 100,000.

GARBIS: I'm talking specifically this'Beatrice Mine

area.

SWARTZ: This unit that encompasses the mine -- what
paragraph was that in, Sandy? Les, help us out here.
CHAIRMAN: It's {n paragraph F on page 2. It says 6,180

acres.

GILLUM: What is the value of that gas? It says 123,600
million cubic feet. That's what, 250 million dollars
worth of gas, is that right? At two doilars?

SWARTZ: potentially.

GILLUM: So this is a big issue:

SWARTZ: Wait a minute. Let me see.

CHAIRMAN: It should be more than that. About double
that.

SWARTZ: Yeah.

GARBIS: So essentially there's 123,000 million cubic
feet from Page 27

SWARTZ: Well -=

CHATRMAN: That was the testimony that we received.

SWARTZ: Right. Just to give you an idea, if the gas in
the unit that Mr. Ratliff has in his well were to trade
at two dollars at 1,000 —- the allowable is 350 ==

there's $700,000 worth of gas in that thihg. At times




earlier this year gas was trading up around four
dollars. Today. it's trading around a puck and forty.
It's a lot of money per unit even at this stage of the
game.

GILLUM: I have a question. You have a permitted well
over the 6,180 acres?

RIGGS: In one 80 acre unit.

GILLUM: But it's over. 1t lies within the 600,180
acres?

CHAIRMAN: Right.

GILLUM: And you're paying royalty to these people oT
someone's receiving royalty on the 80 acres, 1is that ||
correct? |

RATLIFF: ©On the 80 acres.

GILLUM: What does your well produce?

RATLIFF: It's just now going into production. We aré

supplying a small community t+hat I live in, S0 homes_br
less. The gas production in last month was 21,000
cubic foot.

RIGGES: I think the pooling order on that unit you
estimated your reserves to. be 350 ~—

RATLIFF: Uup to 500 millien.

GARBIS: You say Your average monthly withdrawal is
about 21,000 cubic -= i

CATLIFF: Noilsir.i Ixdidn’t say Enat SeIndk 18 wnat !




last month's was. In the winter time that's when all

the production goes up. Right now there's no furnaces

on.

GARBIS: What would you estimate as an annual figure.
RATLIFF: I can't calculate i;. I'm not sure because we
just went on the line December 9th of this last year.

GARBIS: Mr. Ratliff, I recall when you and I had
discussion last two months ago. I think somehow that
you had -- that your present use is somethind like 80
or 90 years.

RATLIFF: We plan one of these days hopefully to put
this gas in a pipeline. We just rigﬁt now are putting
it in the community. The community has been served by
this well since 1972. We did not have a valid permit
until a couple of years back to do what we were doing.
We got the well permitted and went under forced.
pooling and then I was not a ﬁublic utility and‘
therefore could not put the gés back;in the homes. Now
we do have a public utility that handles itrfor us. and
it's back in our homes in our community homes, The
well is capable -- probably one of the best wells in
the State of virginia. Ic prcbab}y ig 'sitting’ in®the
pbest position of any well in Buchanan County, but we

don't want to limit production to 350 million cubic

feet. We are against that one. Ratliff has:one well




Anxd £
MR. GARBIS: Mr. Ratliff, with all due respect, 'if I recall
our conversation last time =-- if I recall correctly and

correct me if I am wrong but I think your problem was

not really one of production, however one of transport-

ation.

RATLIFF: Transportation.

GARBIS: And, of course, if it transportation that is
something that you as an independent business man have
Lo work out with other parties.

RATLIFF: That's right.

GARBIS: So I den't think that needs to be -- correct me
if I am wrong, ﬁemhers of the Board =-- that's not a
part of our purview. I'm sure you understand that you
may have a look at from your position that you want to
have this thing capped, but even if it were capped I
think you're looking at a very large number of years.

I think depending on what estimates you're going to use
that 70 or 90 years -- potentially even more.than that
-- of production which I think is very reasohable; But
you have to understand that from a larger sense we. are

charged with looking at a reasonable means for other

individuals. Just speaking for myself, I don't think
We can grant exceptions to somebody as yourself in a

case where we have other people with their rights that




would have to be locked into.

RATLIFF: I understand.

GARBIS: And I think really the issue in your case is
more one of transportation and really not of produc-
tion.

RATLIFF: This well -- I disagree with you on how many
years -- 1s capable of producing in excess of one
million cubic feet per day.- Now, you figure that up in
days and see how long it would be.

GARBIS: Well, I'm sure that other companies can come in
there and equal that. I mean, they have the right to
do that, don't they? Couldn't somebody else.come in
there? As a matter of fact, I'm.sure if I got a topo
map I could sit there and come up with a number of
places where you could equal or double or triple that.

MR. RATLIFF: I can't answer that.

MR. GARBIS: The fact that it's capable is a moot point in
my personal opinion. I mean, whaﬁ it‘s capable of --
but there has to be some regulatory bounds in”how we're

going to bound this problem.

A

MR. RATLIFF: I understand. But this well has been‘in

production now since 1872.. Part of the years it was
not permitted and now it is permitted. And when you
take away vested rights the person that's qoing to be"

faced with the liability is the State of Virginia. I




want to point :that out to you.

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Chairman, any other questions of Mr.
Ratliff.

GILLUM: I have one question. Have you -- you're paying
the royalty to these people and your estimated reserve
on this 80 acre being 500 million -- is that rightl-—
cubic feet? That's just an estimate?

RATLIFF: Yes, sir.

GILLUM: Well, is there any provision -- let's just say
that is nothing is ever done here 'and you've pumped
your 500 million cubic feet. .Is there any provision
for these other people for royalties or =-- I mean, does
your situation address only those people ﬁn that 80
acre tract? :

MR. RATLIFF: That's it. Yes.

MR. GILLUM: So the other landowners or gas owners would
essentially get nothing if somerof this gas came from
their property. I guess it would be presumed that some
of this gas comes from everybody's property. Is that’
right?

MR. RATLIFF: Gas is migratory. So it can be here today,
somewhere else tomorrow and gone today and come back

next week.

MR. GARBIS: I have a question of Ms. Riggs, if I may. This

6,180 acres, basically if we divide that.into 80 acre




tracts it would be roughly 77 units.

MS. RIGGS: Right,

MR. GARBIS: What I heard testimony from was that you're

MS.

suggesting that perhaps'the numﬁer of wells could be
different from the number of units.

RIGGS: But you would not need 77 wells., If you were
going on the premise of that area would could bhe
drained by one well it would be larger than 80 acres.
So what they are asking is the ability to consolidate :
acreage to create larger drilling units and take the
allowables from the consolidated units so that they
don't have to drill uneconcmic wells.

GARBIS: Maybe we need to increase the size of the
acreage. Maybe B0 acres is not the right --

SWARTZ: You could. I think the reason to keep the 80s
was two-fold. 1It's an existing unit structure.  So you
don't have to do any mapping. Secondly, it's very
doable in terms of title costs.

GARBIS: Well, you have to do the title cost regardless.

SWARTZ: But you can do it on an incremental.basis.
Essentially what I'm saying is I see Ratliff -- he's
done his title. He's finally escrowing with regard to

royalty on that. When he's getting up to a point where

he's going to go past his 350 million if that ever

happens, he can do title on their 80 acre unit: or lease




it up and get a voluntary unit, petition the Board to
apply those allowables to that well bore and go on with
higelifelse T mean, in a very simple way for him --
that's what I'm asking that everybody would have the

right to do. But the whole roint of these field rules,

and I think you guys are focusing on that, is to make
sure that the twelve and a half percent royalty which

is a significant amount of money get spread to all the’

potential people who ought to benefit from it. . That's

why you engage in this kind of an exercise., From an
operator's standpoint -- from my client's standpoint
they are going to pay twelve and a half percent royalty}
99 percent of the time becauée they don‘tlown this
Stuff in fee. It's a cost of doing businéss and an

operator just needs to bear that in ‘mind and pony up

the royalty. The reason for -- so it's the cost of

doing business. But the reason.for this field rule in

particular here is to spread that royaltf'income Stream

equally to all royalty owners in this 6,100 acres. o —
That's the point. :

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now let me ask You a question. When you talk
about being able to bring ‘into this oné Unit where

you're draining units that are not contiguous that are

voluntary units or potentially pooled, but specific--

ally on the voluntary units that can, in effecf,‘cfeate




a checker board and‘then you'd have the pooled units.
What would be the plan to develop those that would have
to be pooled then? How we would énsure that they ever ‘
got developed or that those people got paid.

MR. SWARTZ: The engineering testimony is appropriate and I
think Claude was relatively conservative.  If you've
got up to 77 roughly units and you've got 35 left
there's 35 times 350 million in the ground. This isn't
like the conventional wells thap you hgard about th;s l
morning where you said there's a ten percent chance of
hitting gas in this formation. There's no such thing
as a dry hole coalbed methane unless something horriblg&:ﬁ ;
happens, unbelievable. So unless the gas content daté‘"'
is Jjust completely wrong -- and we've got enouﬁh
experience in this field to suggesylthat this is, in'
fact, the content here, perhaps even conservatively.
If there are 35 un;ts left there's a lot of gas left
and there's an economic incentive for somebody to put a
hole in one of those units and start doing what we'Tre
talking about,. #

MR. GILLUM: But I think the question is well taken because
rrobably what you're going to do is you're goirf.g to‘g;:
to those areas that you can lease up quickly iﬁstead of

going to this other gentleman this morning who had 500

man hours you're probably going to go someplate.Whéré




it's relatively easier. I mean, I would.

MR. SWARTZ: Right.

MR. GARBIS: So therefore the correct question is once you
have all the easy ones that are leased up you can.come
in there and how do we insure that tougher ones --
there might be a reason why we would do when é more
logical --

MR. SWARTZ: Well, let's think about.economic‘opportunity.
If gas prices are around two deollars and you're-talking
at $700,000 in revenue a unit, you've got an‘existing

well, BSo you've got no capital in terms of well costs.

You've got an infrastructure to market the gas. Unless

your title -- if your title was $200,000 potentially
you would do that to recover the additional 700,000.
The economics of this to me will®drive develqpment.
There's not an opportunity to cherry pick here which I
think is your concern -- ta just put a bad wérd onygd te

I don't see it. It doesn't happen.

GARBIS: To take the cream off the top.

SWARTZ: Because you can only take 350. Now, if there
are ten units left there's ten'times 350.

GARBIS: Tom, how do vou feel about this? TR

FULMER: As far as allowables -- and this again is going
to something that the Board has never approached aﬁd

never wants to say or never wants to approach is




production unitization. That's what you're talking
about here. That's spread upon all persons who are
involved within that production unit. We've been

»

hinting around in several different cases in the Board

but that's exactly what you're talking about. Once you
have something depleted -- once you have a unit that‘s_
producing from a common source then everybody is
producing from that common source. So the question is
should one be able to produce more than another and the
answer has always been no. They produce equally. And
that's where you get to allowables, only in-that case,
MR. GARBIS: I was specifically speaking/of was in the case,
as we say, cherry picking or as I say take the cream
off the top, taking the easier oﬁes, is thﬁt going to

be a problem? We're talking about the financial

incentive at 700,000 for an 80 acre tract. T think
there's some pretty strong dollars there. We just want
to make sure that everything that's to be had is takeﬁ
out and that we don't -- that's nothing left behind.

SWARTZ: I understand.

FULMER: In this manner I don't believe you're going to

be able to cherry pick that much. There's net that
much to cherry pick.
RIGGS: Well, in none of the other field rules that

¥

we've done where we've put down the grid like this




have we ever said it's got tc he developed in a
particular sequence.- That's generally left up to the
esconomice of the operator's operation to dictate. so
there's no precedent and being that you could only take
allowables and consolidate them in increments of 80.

In other words, you couldn't take part of the unit and
take part of that unit's allowables and consolidate.

It has to be total 80 acre units. You have . to have. the
whole unit in order to take that allowable and use it
to another well. You don't get the splintering of the
field. You keep it in very uniform units. Plus if
someone's unit was not being developed there's nothing
that stops them from coming before this Board and
getting named operator or finding an operator and
getting their acreage produced. I mean, it's the same

thing you run into in any field. The operator picks

and chooses where their well is going to be and as long

as it's within a legal location that the Board's laid

down generally that's the only reguirement. We don't

tell them in what sequence their drilling program
should be or --

MR. SWARTZ: Another thing that would drive location here,
for example, is proximity to existing pipeline’ and
gathering lines. So there are all kinds of consider-

ations in a unit such as this that have nothing to do




with geology but infrastructure. So there are good
reasons to have flexibility with regard to well
locations

MR. GARBIS: Another question getting back to the original
in front of us. How do I know that 350 is a good
number? Has that been established? Are we convinced i
that 350 -~ for the total number of cubic feet are we Q
convinced that that's the right number? Should it be |
more or less? What's the implications if we want more?

MS. RIGGS: Well, the testimony that we have thus. far is the
one well that is currently producing in the unit, when
they came before the Board and applied that was the
number they established as their estimate and that's
Mr. Ratliff's well. Then the production over the life%.
of the well, he set it at 350 and then the testimony we |
had at the June 18th hearing from an operator who's ‘
operating in the general viecinity that has some
experience, that's what You have before you so far,
that evidence from those twWwo sources.

MR. GARBIS: 1Is that enough? Is that a creditable number?

MS. RIGGS: That's probably all that's out there in terms ofj
~- until you actually drill. Thie morning they came ini
and asked for a provisional drilling unit because they |

didn't have enough data to be able to establish those

kinds of things. until you actually start drilling the |




u~4+ and see what the production is all you can do is
take adjacent areas that have been produced and use
them sort of like comparable sells in an evaluation
process and say very similar coal seam, very similar
circumstances, this is what we have experfenced in the
past which is, I think, what Consol did. And then Mr.
Ratliff's been producing over a period'of some years
now and that's his opinion of where the number is. So
between those two that's all you have, I think.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Plus you have the notice that‘the Board's
done to all parties that were considering this and
there were other operators here and in the call for
anyone wishing to éddress the Board -- I mean, we've
attempted at least to exhaust the body of knowledge
that would be out there right now on this.

MR. FULMER: Mr. Chairman, the only thing I'd like to

mention when you're talking about figures on produc-

tion from a well, in regards to testing of an individ-

ual well as what it's capable of producing you're
assuming that that well is in a virgin reservoir and
you're producing at virgin reservoir pressure. In this

case you're putting a hole into a void and you could

pump it at any rate yvou wanted to. You could lower it.

You could increase it.  You could get all kinds:of

figures of what the potential may or may nog be on a 30




day test. You could produce at a high end or it could
produce at a low end. You can manipulate figures in
this instance. So that's the problem you're dealing
with here. What is the correct number? I don’t think
any two or three pecple could agree what the correct

number would bhe.

KING: Mr. Chairman, is it possible that one well could

draw all of the methane out of that area?

SWARTZ: 1If you 'let it go for 150 years.

CHRIRMAN: For a long enough time and big enough funds
you could pretty much calculate how long it would take.
KING: It is not the mandate of this Board, though, to

make sure that the people that have some rights are

protected?

CHAIRMAN: It is,

KING: I think maybe this is what Sandy's tried to do
here=isnitirt?

CHAIRMAN: I think the two areas-that we've ‘been talking
around but not dealing directly that Mr. Swartz Taisad
is 1) Given the fact that we go with the rest of the
things that are in this order whether or not we're
going to allow -- how does an operator that has an
approved well in a unit bring voluntary units to that

well in order to produce out of that one instead of

having to stick a straw down in four more places =- in




the bladder, if you will -- and then also how do they
get permission to go to the involuntary. Those would
all have to come to the Board. We know that. The
question of the first one is do we want thdse before
the Board as well. :

MR. SWARTZ: I think there needs to be some mechanism. The
other part -- if you don't want to see us on a volun-
tary unit we feel like we need to provide some notice
to you all or to the DGO that we have another voluntary
unit, name it, that we're claiming allowable because we
give the production reports to Mr, Fulmer's office and
we need some mechanism so that he can track what the
allowables on a given well are, if there are multiple
units combined. That's another problem.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I don't want to sway the Board, bﬁt just as
an individual member of the Board my opinion is we are
better off to have them all come before the Board at
least initially in -- since this is a new venture for
the Board and the Board's looking-at~and youlre-not
going to have 77 and we'll have an opportunity to
continue to raise concerns, if-we have concérns, or see

issues or hear from people that have issues about T3

and deal with it on an ongoing basis.

RIGGS: The other issue would be should these field

rules be adopted as provisional rules prending gathering




of additional information that would allow the refine-

ment of some of these figures.

MR. SWARTZ: I don't have a position on‘either of those
issues as stated. If the Board wants the operators to
come back to increase -- to allocate additional
allowables I have no problem with that. There just
needs to be a mechanism.

CHAIRMAN: Okay.

SWARTZ: And obviocusly that takes care of the notice
There would be a petition to utilize allowables or
something which is fine. With regard to whether or not
these field rules are provisional, they need to happen.
If you are more comfortable making them provisional you
can do that. As it was brought up earlier on the other
hand, if you make them non-provisional you can always
revisit them anyway. That's your call.

GARBIS: The next question I had was how do we ascertain

with some decree of confidence that an operator when

they get to the 350 number that that's actually what

the number is?

SWARTZ: There's a production reporting requirement.

Assuming that the operators report their metered

production Mr. Fulmer's office has an opportunity to
track that.

MR. GILLUM: What happens when they reach 3507




SWARTZ: They need to stop unless they =--

GILLUM: Seal the well?

SWARTZ: You can just turn it off. You can shut a well
10

GILLUM: This 1s my first meeting so maybe I don't
understand. But it appears to be that you've got the
one unit that's exception to eyerything else at this
time. There may be other units. Why can't you pool
the unit or any well that goes on a particular 80 tract

that takes it's 350, those guys get their royalty and

the balance spills over into a pool? Is that too

complicated or =-=-

MR. CHAIRMAN: You mean if you produce more than the 3507

MR. GILLUM: Yeah.. That way if Ratliff produces 350
million, his people get their twelve and a half
royalty --

MR. SWARTZ: My clients would gé nuts if they could do that
and I will tell you why. We could drill oné well.
Once we got past the 350 we would just take the twelve
and a half percent, .send it to an escrow égent, we'd
never have to do any title. Alllof it would just
achieve to the State because nobody would ever do the .
title. I mean, in theory it would preserve the funds
but no one would ever have a financial incentive to

identify the people who are entitled to the funds and




MR.

MR.

all the money would achieve to the State. ,

GILLUM: but it abpears to me we're talking about so
much money if these numbers are accurate that it would
be adequate resources to.

SWARTZ: My clients wouldn't spend the money under those
circumstances because .they're not entitled to the
funds. So the claimants and/or ébme collection of
lawyers who foresee that as a new booming business =- I
suppose if you created a 100 million dollar fund you'd
have a lot of people claiming it. But at least from an
operator's standpoint that would be a dream come true
because you'd do title on an 80 acré unit:and you could
just forget about it. . You might be right that ultimat-
ely the fund would be larger enough that people would
be -- how long does it take to SG to the State here?
RIGGS: It depends on whether or not.it commences
running from the time ownership is determined under a
conflicting claimant situation.. It could be forever.
SWARTZ: So people would have a"lot of time to sort it
out then potentially.

FULMER: The uniform disposition act regquires five

Years.

RIGGS: The problem you have with cocalbed methane but

not the problem is there's never been a court’ determin-

ation of who owns it. Therefore, the statute provides




MR,

this escrowing pending that ultimate determination of
ownership. So in addition to unknowns and unlocatables
you have the coal and gas and oil. Everything goes
into escrow on the royalty side and until that deter-
mination is made that X owns thep I don't think the :
five year starts to run.

SWARTZ: Also I'm thinking maybe you're going to have
some due process problems and notice problems because
there are people that are locatable and have determin-
able interests. And I think from a constitutional
standpoint that we might all have some problems doing
that. I mean, from an operator's standpoint it would .-
be a very attractive alternative but: I'm not sure‘we

canidoiits,

MR. CHAIRMAN: If I could kind of illustrate something just

for the Board's information. I'm not saying this is an
accurate position, but if you look at the sealed area
and say this is it, what I believe is béing requeéted
here for us to make a determination on is that if you
have a well in this unit and you have a voluntary unit
here, here and here you could pbol those three times
that 350 and bring out here. 8o you would just kind of
start Xing these off. As you had those 77 you'd have
four coming out of there, for example, or you could.

have pooled unit that you'd bring in. You drill here




and then you bring in two other pooled and one volun-
tary unit into the next one. So you may end up with
fifteen to twenty wells., Is that, in essence, the

understanding that everybody has of 1t?

MS. RIGGS: And once you use a unit's allowable that unit no |

longer can ever have a well in 1it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That's right. So we have that decision to
make. Is that acceptable? The_méchanism would be
whether or not they would come before the Board for
that or would the Board want them to go to the Inspect-
or for that rather than come to the Board on a volun- |
tary unit. That!s an issuef And then the next one
would be do you want these field'rules to be provision- u
al subject to change as we develop additional inform- ;
ation or do you want them to be final field rules which‘j
are also subject to change based on the Board's
discovery of additional information at any point in
time of notice. And also whether or not the rest of
the draft order 1s acceptable :to. the Ecard.. The nnzion;
would need to -- if we're at the point of making one

would need to encompass those things. 1Is there
anything else that I've overlooked?
MR. GARBIS: Why don't we take them one at a time and vote

on them?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Okay. Let's deal with just the draft order
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as it's drafted now which would include the 350
allowable. Let's don't deal with whether it's pro-
visional or final. Let's just consider is this
language acceptable to the Board, yes or no, and I'll
ask for a motion on that if it is.

GARBIS: I would advance a motion the 350 be used as the

marker or as presented here in this proposal.,

CHAIRMAN: As a cap on production.

GARBIS: A cap on production at 350.

KING: I second the motion.

CHAIRMAN: A motion and a second and the rest of the

language in the order acceptable. A motion and a:

second. All in favor say yes. (ALL AFFIRM.) Opposed

Say no. (NONE.) The next item would be the mechanism

that the operator would come to the Board for a

voluntary unit in order to bring those voluntary units

-- I was trying to think of a good term to use -- pool

those units as we previously discussed'into that one

producing unit.

RIGGS; To allocate the allowables of a voluntary unit

Lo a unit with a well.

CHAIRMAN: That's what I was looking for. Right. To

allocate. Do you want that to ceme to the Board or do

you want the Inspector to handle those?

GARBIS: I think that should come to the Board until




we get a feel for how those things can Le sorted out.

KING: I second the motion. 1;'

CHAIRMAN: A motion and a second.  Further discussion?

All in favor signify by saying yes. (ALL AFFIRM.) |

i
Opposed say no. (NONE.) And then finally should this

f. ]

be a provisional or final order of field rules.

I
GRANT: Mr. Chairman, I move that this be a provisional

beH
rule.

CHAIRMAN: We have a motion for a provisional order.j

GARBIS: TI'll second that motion.

CHAIRMAN: A motion and second. Further discussion?

)
All in favor signify by saying Yes. (ALL AFFIRM.) |

Opposed say no. (NONE.) Have we missed anything?
right. Thank you. : wit

FULMER: Mr. Chairman, something that bothered me in

talking about the amount of allocation per unit --

¢ |
CHAIRMAN: Could you speak up just a little bit. -
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FULMER: Something that:bothers me when you're talking

about the allocation per unit and somebody's been

saying 350 million cubic feet, that ain't right. i
CHAIRMAN: MMCF, i

FULMER: That's what I'm saying. That's not million
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cubic feet, is it? 5 [
o [

CHAIRMAN: Well, it's in accordance with the order.

FULMER: 350 million thousand cubic feet.




SWARTZ: TIt's 350 million cubic feet, right?

FULMER: OKkay. Go ahead. It's just the way it was
coming to me.  I'm sOrry.

CHAIRMAN: Anything further on this? Further discuss-

ion? Okay. That concludes that discussion. It's

12:00. Do you want to finish the last two or go to

lunch? Finish? Okay.




